
 

 

Hartford City Council Agenda 

Tuesday, January 5, 2021 – 7:00 p.m. 

Hartford City Hall 

 Mayor: Jeremy Menning 

Ward 1: Mark Brenneman and Travis Kuehl 

Ward 2: Mark Monahan and Mark O’Hara 

 Ward 3: LaVonne Randall and Arden Jones 

 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Business Items 

• Roll Call of Mayor and City Council Members 

• Additions to the Agenda/Approve Agenda 

• Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 

*Regular Meeting Minutes – 12/15/2020 

*Special Meeting Minutes – 12/21/2020 

• Approve Bills submitted for Payment (if any) 

Public Comments – Public Input on Non-Agenda Items 
*Action cannot be taken on items discussed unless specifically listed elsewhere on the 

agenda* 

 

Applications, Agreements, Hearings, Resolutions & Ordinances 

• 7:05 Hearing – Renewal of City Garbage Licenses (Novak Sanitary Service, 

        Cressman Sanitation, Inc., RBS Sanitation Inc., Bolte’s Sunrise Sanitation, Inc.)   

• 7:10 Hearing - 1st Reading of Ordinance #698–Zoning Amendment for Off-Street Parking  

• 2nd Reading of Ordinance #699 – Zoning Definition Amendment 

Reports 

• Minnehaha Sheriff Deputy Report – Deputy Kardas 

• City Engineer Report – Stockwell Engineers    

  *Update on Engineering Contracts 

• Public Works Superintendent – Craig Wagner  

• Finance Officer Report – Karen Wilber 

  *Set 2021 Municipal Election Date (Tuesday, April 13,2021) 

• City Administrator Report – Teresa Sidel 

 

Old Business 

• Appointment to HADF Envision 2025 Advisory Board – Mark O’Hara 

 

New Business 

• Discuss Location of Jamboree Street Dance for 2021 Event – Leah Johnson 

• Review/Approve Job Description for Part-Time Office Help 

• Review/Approve City Attorney Contract 

 

Correspondence 

 

Executive Session (SDCL 1-25-2) (SDCL 9-34-19) 

  

Adjournment 

 

 

 

Next Regular City Council Meeting: Tuesday, January 19, 2021 



City Council Meeting – Regular Meeting December 15, 2020  

 
Mayor Jeremy Menning called the meeting to order at 7:00pm at Hartford City Hall with the following city council 

members present:  Mark Monahan, Arden Jones, Mark Brenneman, Travis Kuehl, Mark O’Hara and LaVonne Randall.  

Also present were City Administrator Teresa Sidel, City Finance Officer Karen Wilber, Public Works Superintendent Craig 

Wagner, City Engineer Mitch Mergen and approximately 3 people from the public. 

 

BUSINESS ITEMS: 

• Approve Agenda:  A motion was made by Jones, second by Brenneman to approve the agenda as set - all voted 

yes, motion carried.  

• Approval of the Minutes:  A motion was made by O’Hara, second by Randall to approve the meeting minutes 

from December 1,2020 – all voted yes, motion carried.  

• Approval of the Bills:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by Jones to approve the bills submitted for 

payment – all voted yes, motion carried. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 

 

VISITORS: 

• Greg Oleson with Goldenwest Telecommunications addressed the council via teleconference along with Rich 

Heiman, who was present at the meeting.  A brief history of Goldenwest was given, where they started to where 

they are now.  Goldenwest partners with all the communities they service in any way they can – through economic 

development donations, scholarships, donations to beautification projects to name a few.  They are truly invested 

in each community.  With the infrastructure Goldenwest has in place, Hartford is in a good position for future 

growth and those communication needs that come along with that growth. 

• Bruce Wilsey with Brosz Engineering was present to discuss the recent bridge inspections they completed for the 

City.  The City has 4 bridges that are required by the State to be inspected.  All 4 bridges are in good condition and 

no repair recommendations were made. 

 

ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, APPLICATIONS AND HEARINGS: 

• 7:05 Public Hearing – Liquor License Transfer from Empire Productions, LLC to Hartford Fireside, LLC:  

The City has received paperwork to transfer the on-sale liquor license from Empire Productions, LLC to Hartford 

Fireside, LLC.  A motion was made by Jones, second by O’Hare to approve the transfer of the on-sale liquor 

license from Empire Productions, LLC to Hartford Fireside, LLC – Brenneman abstained with all others voting 

yes, motion carried. 

• 1st Reading of Ordinance #699 – Zoning Definition Amendment:  This ordinance, which has been suggested by 

the Planning & Zoning Board, would change the zoning regulations adding in-ground pools to the definition of 

“Structure” allowing the City to regulate setback and placement requirements.  This ordinance came before the 

council on Nov 4th and action was taken to have the Planning & Zoning Board review this further in regard to 

regulating above ground pools as well.  On Nov 30th, the Planning & Zoning Board reviewed again and made no 

changes stating that the placement of above ground pools, and any liability associated with them, is the owner’s 

responsibility.  A motion was made by Jones, second by Kuehl to approve 1st reading of Ordinance #699 amending 

zoning definitions – Brenneman voted no with all others voting yes, motion carried. 

• 2nd Reading of Ordinance #701 – 2020 Supplemental Appropriation:  This ordinance will provide additional 

appropriations to the City’s 2020 budget.  A motion was made by Brenneman, second by Monahan to approve 2nd 

reading of Ordinance #701 2020 Supplemental Appropriation which will add $277,261.66 to the general fund 101 

budget; $67,869.39 the capital improvement fund 505 budget; $553,306.50 to the capital improvement fund 508 

budget; $130,000 to the water fund 602 budget; and $849,774.45 to the sewer fund 604 budget – all voted yes, 

motion carried. 

• Resolution 2020-16 Transfer Funds from Special Assessment Fund to General Fund:  The special assessment 

fund was set up in 2006 for street assessments paid to the city.  All these assessments have been paid and this fund 

needs to be closed.  Resolution 2020-16 will transfer the balance in this fund to the general fund. A motion was 

made by Monahan, second by Brenneman to approve Resolution #2020-16 – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Resolution 2020-17 Transfer Funds from Water Fund to Mickelson Road Fund:  With the Mickelson Road 

project there were expenses related to the FEMA LOMR process.  Resolution 2020-17 will transfer monies from 

the water fund to the Mickelson Rd fund to cover these costs.  A motion was made by Monahan, second by 

Brenneman to approve Resolution #2020-17 – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Resolution 2020-18 Transfer Funds from General Fund/Vandemark Ave Fund to 9th Street Fund:  Funding 

for the 9th St project were to be loan proceeds along with monies from the general fund.  When loan proceeds were 

received, those funds were placed in the Vandemark Ave project fund.  Resolution 2020-18 will transfer loan 

proceeds from the Vandemark Ave fund, along with monies from the general fund, to the 9th St fund.  A motion 

was made by Monahan, second by Brenneman to approve Resolution #2020-18 – all voted yes, motion carried. 

 



• Resolution 2020-19 Transfer of Contingency Funds:  This resolution would approve the transfer of funds from 

the city’s contingency account to the finance office account in the general fund.  A motion was made Monahan, 

second by Brenneman to approve Resolution 2020-19 to transfer $4,639.28 from the city’s contingency account to 

the finance office account  – all voted, motion carried. 

 

REPORTS: 

• Fire Department Report:  Fire Chief Bryon Shumaker was present to give a department update to the council.  

Shumaker reported that Nov had 56 total calls with 16 in city limits.  An update was given on the various trainings 

that were held for fire and EMS services.  Shumaker will be stepping down as chief on Jan 13th, with Matt Horn 

taking over the position.  Shumaker thanked the City for their partnership with the department. 

• Engineer Report:  Mitch Mergen’s report was provided to the council.   

9th Street Improvements – A corrective action proposal has been received from the contractor for the portion of 

asphalt that was paved in wet conditions.  Since testing came back satisfactory, they are proposing a warranty 

extension rather than relay the pavement.  The contract allows for a 1-year warranty.  The contractor is proposing 

an additional 4 years, for a total of 5 years.  Further discussion was held on whether 5 years would be long enough 

and also the precedent that would set if the city does not require the contractor to fix the issue.  A motion was 

made by Brenneman, second by Randall to reject the contractor’s proposal – all voted yes, motion carried.  The 

consensus of the council is that the contractor mill and relay the top lift on the affected section of the street.  

Mergen will follow up with the contractor. 

Ruud/Opal Lane Intersection Improvements –  The final pay application is being reviewed with the contractor and 

will be presented at a future meeting. 

Mickelson Road Improvements –  Engineers continue to work through the items with FEMA in regard to the 

LOMR. 

• Public Works Report:  Public Works Superintendent Wagner’s report was provided to the council.   

Streets –  Wagner has submitted the 2021 slurry seal project information to city engineers, who will submit to the 

City of Sioux Falls for bidding.  Sweeping has been put on hold unless the weather warms up.  Staff has been 

working through some issues with the crossing lights and needed parts have been ordered.  Cleaning of drainage 

areas will continue as weather allows.  Christmas decoration will be taken down after the first of the year.               

Water – Staff continues to change out meters as time allows.  There are over 200 on the new system now.  

Quarterly reporting is done.  

Sewer – The Nov DMR reporting is complete.  Wagner will be working on the Dec, which is due Jan 28th.  

Discharging is done and there were no violations.  A spare pump was purchased for the Sagehorn lift station.    

Park:  The refurbishing of the used playground equipment is nearly complete.  If the weather holds, staff will 

proceed with installation.  

Sports Complex – More Dirt work has been done for the future building site.  There has also been some grading 

and seeding done. 

Public Buildings – A tv/mount/cabling has been ordered for the shop.  This will be paid from COVID relief funds.  

Staff will use this for group online training sessions. 

• Finance Officer Report:  City Finance Officer Wilber’s report was provided to the council.  Items included cash 

balances, sales tax revenue and committee fund balances as of Nov 30th, a recap of bills submitted for payment and 

the calendar of events.     

• City Administrator Report:  City Administrator Sidel’s report was provided to the council.  On Nov 23rd & 24th 

the council interviewed 4 engineering for the future WWTF project.  The council set of date of Dec 21st at 7pm to 

hold a meeting to narrow that selection down.  Sidel provided a recap of items the City will be purchasing yet this 

year that will qualify for reimbursement by the COVID relief funds.  The job description for the part-time office 

position that was approved for 2021 will be presented for review at the next council meeting.  During this year’s 

legislative session, the State will be establishing regulations for the new marijuana laws that were passed in Nov.  

More information and guidance will be available to municipalities after this session.  The P&Z board will be 

holding a public hearing on Dec 29th to further discuss amendments to the off-street parking regulations.  A listing 

of 2021 council meeting dates was provided.  The City has received around 20 application for the CEDD position.  

A selection committee was established consisting of Mayor Menning, City Admin Sidel, Council Members Kuehl 

& Randall and a member from both the HADF and Chamber.   

  

OLD BUSINESS: 

• Hartford Area Fire & Rescue – COVID Recovery Fund Request:  At the Dec 1st meeting, the council 

approved for the purchase of 5 radios for the HAFR.  These radios would be eligible for reimbursement from the 

City’s COVID relief funds.  Since that meeting, the State has revised their guidelines as it pertains to fire 

departments.  They are allowing reimbursement of radios based on a percentage of the department’s membership.  

As a result of this, HAFR is eligible for 3 more radios.  In addition, the purchase of a LUCAS CPR devise would 

also qualify for reimbursement by COVID relief funds.  As with the first 5 radios, HAFR would use the equipment 

but it would remain the property of the City and be on the City’s inventory list.  There has been discussion at the 

State level that should the Federal Government audit this request and decide it does not quality, the reimbursement 

made by the State would be reversed, leaving the City and/or HAFR responsible for this cost.  A motion was made 



by Monahan, second by Brenneman to approve the purchase of 3 additional radios and a LUCAS CPR devise for 

HAFR provided that if a federal audit deems the items ineligible, HAFR would reimburse the City for the cost of 

the 3 radios and the LUCAS CPR machine – all voted yes, motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  

• Review/Approve Billboard Lease for East Face Billboard #2:  The leases for the east face of billboard #2 is 

coming up for renewal.  Sunshine Foods and Tammen Auto & Tire each rent half of this billboard.  No changes 

have been made to the lease agreements except for the new 3year lease term.  A motion was made by Monahan, 

second by Brenneman to approve the billboard lease agreements for Sunshine Foods and Tammen Auto & Tire – 

all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Review/Approve 2021 Minnehaha County Sheriff Dept Police Service Agreement:  A motion was made by 

Monahan, second by Brenneman, to approve the 2021 agreement with the Minnehaha County Sheriff Dept for 

police services – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Review/Approve 2021 SF Area Humane Society Animal Control Contract:   A motion was made by Monahan, 

second by Kuehl, to approve the 2021 contract with the SF Area Humane Society for animal control services – all 

voted yes, motion carried. 

• Review/Approve 2021 Fire Protection Service Agreement:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by Kuehl, 

to approve the agreement with Hartford Area Fire & Rescue for 2021 Fire Protection Services – all voted yes, 

motion carried.   

• Review/Approve 2020 Audit Engagement Letter:  A motion was made by Jones, second by O’Hara, to approve 

the engagement letter to allow Quam, Berglin & Post, PC to perform the City’s 2020 audit – all voted yes, motion 

carried.  

• Review/Approve 2020 Annual Report Engagement Letter:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by 

Kuehl, to approve the engagement letter to allow Quam, Berglin & Post, PC to prepare the City’s 2020 annual 

report – all voted yes, motion carried. 

• Appointments: 

o Planning & Zoning Members for 2021:  Four Planning & Zoning board members terms are expiring at the 

end of the year – Tony Randall, Tim Graham, Michelle Kilbourn & Stephanie Olson-Voth.  Randall, 

Graham and Kilbourn have expressed interest in serving another term while Olson-Voth feels it is time to 

step down.  Mayor Menning appointed Tony Randall, Tim Graham and Michelle Kilbourn to a 2year 

term on the Planning & Zoning Board.  A motion was made by Kuehl, second by O’Hara to approve the 

Mayor’s appointment of Tony Randall, Tim Graham and Michelle Kilbourn to the Planning & Zoning 

Board for a 2year term – Randall abstained with all others voting yes, motion carried.  Mayor Menning 

will appoint the remaining position at a later date.    

o HADF Envision 2025 Advisory Board:  As part of the HADF Envision 2025 campaign, the HADF needs 

to set up an advisory board, which will be made up of Envision donors.  This group will meet quarterly to 

discuss the goals of land acquisition, quality of live improvements and workforce development.  HADF is 

requesting an individual, on behalf of the City, sit on this board for a 3year term.  Councilmember O’Hara 

expressed interest but would need to confirm that this would be allowed as he currently sits on the HADF 

board. 

o Sioux Valley Energy Member Advisory Council:  Being one of their member communities, SVE is 

seeking a representative from the City of Hartford to sit on their Member Advisory Council (MAC).   

MAC meetings are periodically called by SVE Board of Directors to receive member input on various 

topics.  Councilmember Kuehl expressed interest in the position.  A motion was made by Brenneman, 

second by Jones to approve the appointment of Councilmember Kuehl to the SVE Member Advisory 

Council – Kuehl abstained, with all others voting yes, motion carried. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE:  A thank you was given to Stockwell Engineers for the Christmas treat boxes given to each of the 

staff and council members.   

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  A motion was made Brenneman, second by Jones to enter executive session pursuant to SDCL 

1-25-2 (1) for personnel at 8:39pm – all voted yes, motion carried.   

 

Minutes recorded by Finance Officer Karen Wilber. 

  

I, the undersigned, Karen Wilber, Finance Officer in and for the City of Hartford, South Dakota, do hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes which is on file at the Municipal Finance Office. 

 

 

____________________________________                             

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

 



EXECUTIVE SESSION:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by Jones to exit executive session at 8:55pm – all 

voted yes, motion carried. 

 

A motion was made by Monahan, second by Randall to give each year-round city employee a $200 cash bonus – all voted 

yes, motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made by Jones, second by Monahan to adjourn at 8:56pm – all voted yes, motion 

carried. 
 

Minutes recorded by City Administrator Teresa Sidel. 

  

I, the undersigned, Teresa Sidel, City Administrator in and for the City of Hartford, South Dakota, do hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes which is on file at the Municipal Finance Office. 

 

 

____________________________________                             

Teresa Sidel, City Administrator 

 

 



City Council Meeting – Special Meeting December 21, 2020 
 

Mayor Jeremy Menning called the meeting to order at 7:00p.m. with the following city council members present: 

Mark Monahan, Arden Jones, Mark Brenneman, Travis Kuehl, Mark O’Hara and LaVonne Randall.  City 

Administrator Teresa Sidel and Public Works Superintendent Craig Wanger were also present. 

Approve Agenda: A motion was made by Monahan, second by Jones to approve the agenda as set – all voted 

yes, motion carried. 

Review and Discuss Engineering Presentations for WWTF:  The city reviewed the RFQs submitted and 

presentations presented by four engineering firms in conjunction with the city’s future wastewater treatment 

facility.  Discussion was held regarding the pros and cons of each firm and input was sought by the entire 

council and staff present.  Although each firm was well qualified, the best interest of the taxpayers was the 

main consideration of the city council.     

Select Engineering Firm for WWTF:  A motion was made by Monahan, second by Brenneman to employ 

engineering services with Stockwell Engineers for a future WWTF contingent on council approval of a 

negotiated contract – all voted yes, motion carried.   

   

Adjournment: A motion was made by Monahan, second by O’Hara to adjourn at 8:50p.m. – all voted yes, 

motion carried. 

 

Minutes recorded by City Administrator, Teresa Sidel. 

 

I, the undersigned, Teresa Sidel, City Administrator in and for the City of Hartford, South Dakota, do hereby certify 

that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes which is on file at the Municipal Finance 

Office. 

 
 

Teresa Sidel, City Administrator 







NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Pursuant to SDCL 11-4-4, notice is hereby given that the Hartford City Council will hold 

a Public Hearing on January 5, 2021, regarding an amendment to the revised Hartford 

Zoning Regulations, which was recommended by the Hartford Planning Commission.  A 

copy of the proposed Hartford Zoning Regulations amendment is available for public 

review at the Hartford City Hall in the office of the City Administrator during regular 

business hours. 

 

This City Council public hearing will be held at the following time, date and location: 

 

7:10 P.M. 

January 5, 2021 

Hartford City Hall (125 N. Main Avenue) 

 

The purpose of this hearing is to explain the proposed amendment to the Hartford Zoning 

Regulations to interested persons, to answer questions regarding this item, and to hear 

public comment on this item.  The City Council invites all interested persons to attend 

and offer their comments.  Those interested persons not able to attend are invited and 

encouraged to send written comments, prior to the hearing, to the Hartford City 

Administrator, 125 N. Main Avenue, Hartford, SD  57033. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special 

assistance to participate in this hearing, please contact the City Administrator at (605) 

528-6187.  Anyone who is deaf, hard-of-hearing or speech-disabled may utilize Relay 

South Dakota at (800) 877-1113 (TTY/Voice).  Notification 48 hours prior to the hearing 

will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 

hearing. 

 

Teresa Sidel 

City Administrator 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 698 
 

AMEND ZONING REGULATION #687 

 OFF-STREET PARKING REGULATIONS 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SD, AMENDING ORDINANCE 687, THE 

2016 REVISED ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SD, BY AMENDING 

CHAPTER 12, SECTION 12.04 (B) – OFF-STREET PARKING. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SD: 

 

That Ordinance 627, Chapter 12, Section 12.04 (B) – Off-Street Parking shall be amended as 

follows: 

 

12.04 Off-Street Parking 
 

 

B.  General Conditions – Applied to all Vehicles 

 

 

1. No parking spaces are permitted in the required front yard in an R or MH 

District except for portions of the front yard necessary for hard surfaced 

driveways or as otherwise provided in this Ordinance. Parking is permitted in a 

side yard or rear yard in an R District upon hard surface pads. 

 

2. The width of driveway(s) within the city boulevard on properties with no 

sidewalks shall not exceed thirty-six (36) feet in width.  The width of 

driveway(s) within the city boulevard on properties with sidewalks shall not 

exceed thirty-six (36) feet in width from the back of the curb or hard surface 

street to the boulevard sidewalk.  An exception for a 40’ feet driveways shall 

be allowed for commercial properties expecting semi-truck traffic. The design 

of the driveway flare, within the driveway approach, is optional but cannot 

exceed 6 feet over the width of the driveway.  All new driveways must include 

a poured sidewalk. Repairs or replacement of existing driveways are exempt 

from including a poured sidewalk within the driveway, unless the property 

already has an existing sidewalk on either side that abuts the driveway. 

 

3. Access approaches shall be prohibited on arterial and collector streets 

from the rear yard of a reverse frontage lot in a residential area. 

 

4. All parking areas in the side and rear yard shall have a hard surfaced pad. 

 

5. All access aisles driveways must be concrete or asphalt, no concrete pavers 

are allowed. An access aisle to a side yard accessory building or parking pad 

is required. An access aisle to a rear yard accessory building or parking pad 

is optional. 

 



 

 

6. The parking requirements in this section shall not be applicable to property 

in the CB Central Business District, except for residential uses which are 

authorized by a conditional use permit. 

 

7. Unless a conditional use permit is received from the Planning and Zoning 

Board, all Commercial and Industrial Zoned Property must have either 

concrete or asphalt surfaces, no concrete pavers, on all required parking spaces 

and all driveway approaches and driveway aisles from the public street to the 

front of each building with vehicle or pedestrian access. All other parking or 

maneuvering surfaces may be concrete, crushed concrete, asphalt or crushed 

asphalt. No parking upon grass or dirt surfaces. 

 

8. The parking of commercial vehicles is permitted in a NRC or R Zoning 

District, subject to a limit of two commercial vehicles per dwelling unit and the 

following limitations: 

 

a. No solid waste collection vehicle, tractor and/or trailer of a tractor-

trailer truck, dump truck, cement-mixer truck, wrecker with a gross 

weight of 18,000 pounds or more or similar such vehicles or 

equipment shall be parked in any residential district. 

 

b. Any commercial vehicle parked in a NRC or R Zoning District shall 

be owned and/or operated only by the occupant of the dwelling unit 

at which it is parked. 

 

9. A conditional use permit will be required for the parking of more than 

two commercial vehicles per dwelling unit. 

 
10. The Zoning Administrator may approve a temporary parking permit, not to 

exceed 30 days, for special circumstances.  An application must be submitted to 

the Business Office for review and approved by the Zoning Administrator.  The 

applicant must comply with all rules and regulations set forth by the Zoning 

Administrator.  

 

Adopted this 17th day of November 2020. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Jeremy Menning, Mayor 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 



 

 

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

 

Seal 

 

 

 

First Reading:  November 4, 2020 

Second Reading & Adoption:  November 17, 2020 

Publication: November 27, 2020 

Effective Date: December 17, 2020 







 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 699 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SD, AMENDING THE 2016 REVISED 

HARTFORD ZONING REGULATIONS BY AMENDING CHAPTER 20, DEFINITIONS. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF HARTFORD, SD: 

 

That the following entries in Chapter 20.02 of the 2016 Revised Hartford Zoning Regulations are hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

 

 

STRUCTURE - Anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground with a 

fixed location on the ground or attached to something having a fixed location on the ground.  

Among other things, structures, include buildings, walls, fences, signs, docks, dams, 

manufactured homes, sheds, and in-ground pools. 

 

 

 

Adopted this 5th day of January 2021. 
 

 

 
Jeremy Menning, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

Karen Wilber, Finance Officer 

 

(Seal) 

 

 

 

First Reading:  December 15, 2020 

Second Reading & Adoption:  January 5, 2021 

Publication: January 15, 2021 

Effective Date: February 4, 2021 
 



MCSO HARTFORD FIELD OFFICE 30 DAY REVIEW, DECEMBER 2020 

 

Security checks: 10 

Medical calls: 11 

Traffic stops: 94 

• Cites: 24 

• Written Warnings: 39 

• Verbal Warning: 10 

Reckless Drivers: 4 

Follow-up: 10  

Civil paper service: 9  

Public assist: 6 

DWI: 4 

Parking problems: 2 

Snowbird: 10 

Family dispute: 1 

SO Landlines: 14 

Abandoned vehicles: 2 

Suspicious vehicle: 5 

Suspicious activity: 1 

Disorderly subjects: 4 

Traffic accidents: 4 

Warrant Service: 2 

Larceny: 4 

Vandalism: 1 

Case reports: 11 

Arrest: 3 

Total calls for service including Deputy 

initiated: 250.  8.33 calls for service per day (30 

day) 



 

  1 | Page 

Engineer’s Report 
January 5, 2021 

Wastewater Treatment Facility 
The City is pursuing construction of a Wastewater Treatment Facility located at the I-90 Buffalo Ridge 
Interchange. Various treatment options are to be considered for the facility. The Council concluded 
their interviews for engineering services and are negotiating contracts with the selected firm. 
 

Update | Stockwell Engineers and City staff scheduled a scoping meeting for Monday, January 4th. 
An Agreement to provide engineering services will be reviewed and prepared for Council to consider 
at the second meeting in January. 

9th Street Improvements 
The City approved a resolution of necessity to construct 
improvements along 9th Street from Mundt Ave to Vandemark Ave. 
Improvements include new water mains, sanitary sewer extension 
and roadway improvements. The roadway will be constructed with 
curb and gutter and asphalt pavement. Zacharias Construction was 
awarded the construction contract. The project is substantially 
complete. 

Update | Zacharias Construction was notified of the Council’s action 
to reject the Contractor’s proposal to address the asphalt that was 
paved in wet conditions. The contractor asked that the City 
reconsider. Stockwell requests to enter executive session at the 
council meeting to discuss further contract negotiations. 

 

Ruud and Opal Lane Intersection 
Improvements 
The scope of this project is to improve surfacing at the Ruud and 
Opal intersection. Work will generally include removing the 
asphalt, repairing underground storm sewer infrastructure, and 
restoring it to grade. Zacharias Construction was awarded the 
construction contract. The project is substantially complete. 

Update | Final pay applications are being reviewed with the 
contractor. Final payment will be presented at a future council 
meeting. 

Vandemark Avenue 
Update | Boulevards along Vandemark Avenue will be inspected in the spring. Areas in need of 
grading, overseeding or other work will be addressed by Stockwell. 



 

  2 | Page 

Engineer’s Report 
January 5, 2021 

CIP Updates and Rate Study 
The scope of this project is to update the city’s CIP and conduct a rate study analysis on the water 
and sewer fund. Stockwell staff will assist with cost estimates and project planning in an effort to 
evaluate and budget for future projects. 

Update | The 2020 CIP was finalized and delivered to City Staff. Stockwell will begin to evaluate water 
and sewer rates as the WWTF project progresses. 

Industrial Park Sanitary 
Sewer Extension  
The scope of this project is to construct 
and extend sanitary sewer facilities to 
the City’s industrial park located at the 
intersection of Western Avenue & 258th 
Street. The extension is approximately 
1.3 miles in length.  

Update | All remaining easements are secured and filed at the county courthouse. Construction 
documents are complete and ready to bid. Stockwell will move forward with bidding once 
approved. 

Mickelson Road Improvements 
The Mickelson Road project was a full reconstruction 
of the roadway and utilities from Patrick Avenue to 
Hwy 38. The construction was completed in 2019. The 
remaining scope of the project is working with FEMA 
to map the revised floodway and floodplains of the 
creek that passes under Mickelson Road through the 
new box culverts. 
 

Update | Warranty repairs are complete except for 
the mill and overlay above the box culvert which will 
occur next spring. Revisions to the LOMR application 
was submitted to FEMA. FEMA provided additional comments to incorporate. Stockwell staff is 
working through the items with FEMA. 

Force Account 
Stockwell provides services to city staff as needed under a force account agreement.  Services 
typically include plan reviews, costs estimates or other routine services as requested.   Plan reviews 
typically include preliminary plans, conditional use requests, site plans, engineering documents and 
plats. 

Update |   Since our last report, Stockwell staff provided force account services for the following 
projects: Western Meadows Ph 4 Inspections ▪ 2021 Slurry Seal ▪ Sioux Valley Energy Easement Request 
▪ GIS Updates ▪ Turtle Creek Inspections 



                                                              Maintenance Report – 1/5/2021 

 

December 31, 2020  

 

Streets  

      Roads – The last couple of plowings went well.    

     Equipment- All of the equipment is running well.     

      Street sweeping – We are done sweeping for now, we will have it back out when the 

weather allows.         

      Crossing lights – The two radios and two light bars for the crossing lights should be in today. 

We will be working on them next week.   

       Drainage areas – We are done with drainage areas for now.   

      

Water 

        Meters – We have been working on changing them out, we have over 220 meters on the 

new system.     

        Reports – The next report is due April 10th, 2021.  

  

Sewer 

        Main list station – No issues at this time. 

         Reports – The December DMR will be filled out this coming week, it is due January 28th, 

2021.      

         Lagoons – We are done discharging for now; we should be in good shape for this spring.  

         Sagehorn lift station – Everything is working good for now        

         Future facility – I will continue to look into ideas for a new facility, and I hope to get 

together with Stockwells in the next few weeks to go over some of them.    

 

 



Western Meadows  

          Utilities – The contractor has the water main in and the testing has passed. The new line 

is in service.   

 

Park 

       Parks – Nothing new at this time.   

 

Bike Trail – We took a bench down to get sandblasted and we will be looking into painting it 

after we see how the blasting goes.             

Sports complex – Nothing new at this time.     

Public Buildings – Nothing new at this time.   

Christmas decorations – We will be taking down the Christmas decorations after the first of 

the year.    

  

   Training – Terry, Alan and myself will be taking our pesticide classes on line. We are hoping 

to get them taken in January. We are required to take classes every two years. We also started 

taking on line safety classes and will continue taking them every couple of weeks. Most of the 

classes are around 30 minutes with a quiz at the end. This was a suggestion by our insurance 

company.    

  

 

 

 



 

 

FINANCE OFFICER REPORT 

January 5, 2021 
 

Financials:  I am working on the December month and quarter end duties.  Once complete, I’ll start all the year 

end processing, followed by preparing reports for this year’s audit. The following is a recap of revenue received for 

the month of December: 

State of South Dakota                                 87,118.55  (1st Penny Sales Tax) 

State of South Dakota                  87,118.57  (2nd Penny Sales Tax) 

State of South Dakota                                  9,701.26   (3rd Penny Sales Tax) 

State of South Dakota                                  6,973.36   (COVID Relief Funds) 

State of South Dakota                                  3,140.00   (Mosquito Control Grant) 

State of South Dakota                                  4,857.99   (Alcohol Reversion Tax) 

Minnehaha County                                   108,164.29   (Real Estate Taxes) 

Minnehaha County                                       9,499.78   (Street Maintenance Fee) 

Garbage Haulers                                          1,080.00   (Renewal/Publication Fees) 

Misc.            500.00   (Snow Tickets) 

Misc.            633.64   (Building Permits) 

 

 

      Cash Balances as of                                     November 2019                      November 2020   

             Total General Fund                                       $2,238,750.17                           $1,603,527.86 

 

      Revenue and Expenses for the Month of:       November 2019                      November 2020          

           Revenue - General Fund          $534,204.62                              $793,432.19 

             Expenses - General Fund              $159,316.50                              $194,096.68 

 

      Revenue and Expenses                            2019 Year-To-Date                     2020 Year-To-Date 

  Revenue - General Fund                   $2,295,632.50                           $2,820,051.33 

 Expenses - General Fund       $2,049,585.22                           $2,586,636,71 

 

2021 Election:  State law requires the governing board to set the election date each year.  In the past, the City has 

held its election on the second Tues in April, which is April 13th this year.  The terms are up for the following seats: 

• Mayor Menning – 2yr term 

• Councilman Kuehl (W1) – 2yr term 

• Councilman O’Hare (W2) – 1yr term 

• Councilman Monahan (W2) – 2yr term 

• Councilman Jones (W3) – 2yr term 

 

Calendar of Events:            

January 2021: 

Friday, 1st   New Year’s Day Holiday – City Hall Closed 

Tuesday, 5th    City Council Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 6th      HADF Meeting @ Reliabank, 7:30am 

Monday 11th       Chamber Meeting @ Fire Station, 6:30pm 

Tuesday, 12th   Planning & Zoning Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 13th HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

Monday, 18th   Martin Luther King Jr Holiday – City Hall Closed 

Tuesday, 19th      City Council Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 20th HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 

Tuesday, 26th   Planning & Zoning Meeting @ City Hall, 7pm 

Wednesday, 27th   HADF Meeting @ Stomping Grounds, 7:30am 



   

1/05/20201                                    City Administrator Report 

 

 

Explanation of Agenda Items 

 

 

Applications, Agreements, Hearings, Resolutions & Ordinances: 

• 7:05 Public Hearing – Renewal of City Garbage Licenses: Novak Sanitary Services, Cressman 

Sanitation, Inc., RBS Sanitation Inc and Bolte’s Sunrise Sanitary Service Inc have applied to renew their 

garbage hauling license with the city.  Novak Sanitation and Cressman Sanitation are the only household 

garbage service providers and RBS Sanitation and Bolte’s both provide roll-off service.  Karen has 

gathered all the applications, fees, proof of liability insurance and a list of equipment that they use as 

required by ordinance.   

• 7:10 Public Hearing - 1st Reading of Ordinance #698 – Zoning Amendment for Off Street Parking: 

Ordinance 698 would amend the city’s regulation on driveway widths for off-street parking.  When the 

ordinance was originally presented to the city council for review, there were some concerns regarding 

properties that do not have the standard placement for sidewalks.  Council sent it back to P&Z for further 

discussion.  After further P&Z discussion, the Board made no major changes to the original amendment.  

Section 12.04 (B) 2 would change wording that would state the driveway width of 36 feet in the city’s 

boulevard area can start on the street side of the sidewalk verses current wording which states property line.  

Please note that wording was kept in the ordinance to state that if no sidewalk, then the property line is 

where the 36-foot driveway width in the boulevard begins.  All other verbiage for off-street parking is 

unchanged. The P&Z Board has no concerns with this change since only a handful of properties have no-

standard sidewalks.  The P&Z Board is unanimously recommending approval from the city council.   

• 2nd Reading of Ordinance #699 – Zoning Definition Amendment (no changes):  Enclosed in your 

packet is Ordinance #699 for your review. This ordinance was suggested by the P&Z Board and 

would add "in-ground pools" to the definition of structure for clarification. This mean that the city 

would regulate in-ground pools like accessory structures for setbacks and placements. Above-

ground pools will only be regulated per the IPMC, which sets the standards for fencing and 

controlled access.  Last month the council sent this ordinance back to the P&Z Board for review 

and discuss regulating above ground pools once more.  Further discuss was held between the P&Z 

Board, staff, and councilmembers present. The discussion of regulating above ground pools has been 

thoroughly vetted by the Planning and Zoning Board.   The Board feels that placement of above ground 

pools and any liability associated with these pools, is the owner’s responsibility. The P&Z Board is 

suggesting no changes to Ordinance #699 from its initial presentation to the Council.    

 

Reports: 

• Engineer Report (No Action Needed):  The Mayor, Craig and I will be meeting on Monday, Jan 4th to 

discuss the engineering contracts.  We want to review the force account contract with the engineer and 

discuss how to draft the engineer contracts for the future WWTF.  We will have any update for the council 

at our Tuesday night meeting.  If discussions go well, we plan to present contracts to the council for review 

at our 2nd meeting in January. 

• Finance Officer Report:  The city council will need to officially set the date for the city’s annual election.  

The state has deemed that municipal elections (other than special elections) shall be held the 2nd Tuesday in 

April, which would be April 13th this year.  I need a formal motion to set April 13, 2021 as the city’s 

municipal election date. Petitions can begin circulating January 29th and deadline to file a petition with the 

city is February 26th. 

 

 

Old Business: 

• Appointments to HADF Envision 2025 Advisory Board:  As part of the HADF Envision 2025 

campaign, the HADF needs to set up an Advisory Board, made up of Envision donors, to meet quarterly 

and discuss the goals of land acquisition, quality of life improvements and workforce development.  

Possible Board members has been identified with the City of Hartford holding one Advisory Board seat.  

The HADF is looking for someone from the city to sit on this advisory board for a 3-year term. Councilman 

Mark O’Hara expressed interest in this position, but the council wanted to make sure the HADF had no 



issues with this appointment since O’Hara also sits on the HADF Board.  The HADF Board saw no conflict 

of interest since the Envision 2025 Advisory Board is a separate entity from the HADF Board and O’Hara 

will be representing the city as a councilmember.     

 

 

New Business:   

• Review/Approve Job Description for part-time Office Help:  At budget time, the council approved 

funds to hire a part-time office assistant.  It was noted that with the growth in population, added utility 

accounts, added services, permits, etc. that it was time to add some extra help to the office staff.  In the last 

15 years, the city’s population has doubled but the office help remained the same.  This person will be at 

the front desk helping with walk in traffic, phone calls, simple paperwork, and a variety of office duties.  

We proposed hiring a part-time person to work Monday through Friday from 9am to 3pm (with an hour 

lunch).  Enclosed is a proposed job description for the positions that I would ask to be reviewed and 

approved so advertising can begin. I would like to start advertising for this position as soon as possible 

since it does take time to gather applicants and interview. The starting pay range is within the amount 

budgeted. 

• 2021 Attorney Contract:  Frieberg, Nelson and Ask has submitted a contract for council approval to cover 

their professional services to the city for 2021.  There is no verbiage change from their prior contract with 

the city and there is no change in their hourly fee ($150 per hour).  The only change in the proposed 

contract is their mileage charge – this rate went from .55/mile to .575/mile.   

 

************************************************************************************** 

Non-Agenda Updates 

 

• COVID Relief Fund:  The city has submitted reimbursement for AV equipment for the council room, a 

TV monitor for the public works department for zoom meetings or on-line trainings, VPN address 

additions, and a computer for Rhonda to work from home if need be (she is the only one with a desktop).  

We have also submitted for reimbursement on the fire department radios and Lucas CPR machine that was 

pre-approved.  With the passing of the second stimulus package by congress, it sounds like each state will 

get added funds to help with COVID relief through 2021.  Once South Dakota receives this additional 

funding, the state will determine how to distribute it, but it sounds like cities and counties will be eligible 

for additional funds for COVID relief.  I will keep you posted as we find out more information.     

• CEDD Applicants:  The City received 14 valid applications for the Chamber and Economic Development 

Director.  Ten of those applications are viable and have been sent out to the candidate review committee to 

look through.  I am trying to coordinate a meeting for the committee (which is comprised of the Mayor 

Menning, Councilman Kuehl, Councilwomen Randall, Gabby Honing from the Chamber, Keith Matthiesen 

from the HADF and myself) within the next 2 weeks.  Hopefully, the committee will narrow down the 

applicants and come up with a list of those to interview. 

• Building Permits:  Building permits within the city were up this year.  We had 153 building permits (the 

city averaged just slightly over 100 the last couple of years) not counting the 38 fence permits, 15 small 

shed permits, and 30 flatwork permits.  We had 32 single family home permits issues and one twin home 

permit issued, plus 5 commercial permits.  Total valuation added to the city this year was at $10,643,777.00 

with the Ace Hardware Store being the largest valuation. 

• Sales Tax:  On another good note, the city’s sales tax was up this year even with the pandemic.  I’m 

attributing some of this to people doing more shopping locally.   We surpassed our budget amount and were 

up almost 17% in 1st and 2nd penny tax revenue from last year and up almost 20% in 3rd penny tax revenue 

from last year.    

 

 

 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.  605-261-3995 

Teresa 



 

 

 

 

CITY OF HARTFORD 

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 

 

Office Assistant 

 

 

DEPARTMENT 

Business Office 

 

 

SUPERVISOR 

City Administrator 

 

 

CLASSIFICATION 

Year-Round           

Part Time 

 

Approximate Hours 

Monday – Friday 

9am to 3pm 

     

DEFINITION: 

 
The Office Assistant will perform a variety of administrative and clerical duties.  

 

JOB LOCATION: 

 

This position will be located in City Hall. 

 
 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBLILITIES: 

  

• Greeting and Assisting Patrons. 

 

• Answering and Directing Telephone Calls. 

 

• Respond and Direct Inquires and Complaints to the Appropriate Department. 

 

• Handle all social media accounts and city marquee. 

 

• Assist with Organizing and Communicating City Events and Activities. 

 

• Maintain city calendar on website. 

 

• Assist with Newsletters. 

 

• Assists with Permitting Pets, Golf Carts, Peddler’s, and Sump Pumps. 

 

• Issue Landfill and Pool Passes.   

 

• Schedule City Facilities. 

 

• Maintain Boulevard Tree Spreadsheet and Records 

 

• Assist with Organizing City and Recreational Events 

 

• Work on Special Projects as Assigned 

 

• Other Office Duties as Deemed Necessary and/or Assigned 



 

 

 

 

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES: 

 

• Ability to operate standard office equipment, including but not limited to, computer, telephone 

system, calculator, copier, and facsimile machine. 

 

• Good writing, analytical and problem-solving skills. 

• Ability to maintain high level of accuracy while multi-tasking. 

• Ability to maintain confidentiality. 

• Ability to communicate effectively. 

• Ability to multi-task and have good organizational skills. 

• Be familiar with general office operations and administration. 

• Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with other personnel, outside 

organizations, the general public and city officials. 

 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
High School Graduate or Equivalent.  Basic office skills and knowledge of Microsoft Word, Excel, and 

Outlook. Must possess strong verbal and written communications skills.   

 

 

Qualified applicants with disabilities are encouraged to apply for this job.  No item in this job description 

is intended to screen out qualified applicants.  We encourage all qualified applicants to discuss reasonable 

accommodation requirements. 

 

 

COMPENSATION: 

Starting pay $15-$16 per hour, depending on qualifications and experience.   

 

  

Date:  ___________________________________ 

 

Employee Signature:  ______________________________ 

 



 

 

 AGREEMENT WITH CITY ATTORNEY 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made this ______ day of ______________, 

2021, between the City of Hartford, hereinafter referred to as 

“City”, and Thomas H. Frieberg of Frieberg, Nelson & Ask, 

L.L.P., Attorneys at Law, Beresford, South Dakota, hereinafter 

referred to as “Attorney”. 

I.  City hereby retains, appoints and contracts with 

Attorney to be its City Attorney until such time that the City 

informs attorney his services are no longer necessary. 

II. City shall pay Attorney at the rate of $150.00 per hour 

for Attorney’s time spent in and out of court; City agrees to 

pay Attorney at the rate of $150.00 per hour for attended 

scheduled city council meeting.  Special meetings will be billed 

at the rate of $150.00 per hour. In addition, City agrees to pay 

all costs, filing fees; or other expenses associated with 

Attorney’s representation of City.  City agrees to pay mileage 

to Attorney in connection with the prosecution of city ordinance 

violations and other legal matters that involve travel away from 

Beresford, South Dakota, at the rate of $.575 per mile. 

III. Attorney agrees, on the request of the City to: 

A. Confer with officers of the City on problems of a 

legal nature, do legal research as necessary, render 

opinions and interpretations, as well as general 

advice on administration problems where legal 

implications are present. 



 

B. Prepare ordinances, resolutions, deeds, contracts and 

other legal documents for the City and review for 

legal proprietary documents under consideration by 

city officials. 

 

C. Participate upon request in prosecution of violations 

of city ordinances in municipal court or before 

magistrates. 

 

D. Attend meetings of the City Council as requested and 

give legal advice on request. 

 

E. Prepare cases and represent the City on cases brought 

for court hearing or trial or administrative hearings  

 

F. Investigate and recommend action to be followed on 

claims and complaints by or against the City and 

represent the City on such cases. 

 

G.  Perform such other duties and functions as are 

necessary and incidental to the proper performance of 

the office of the City Attorney. 

 

IV.  Attorney shall be considered an independent contractor 

and nothing herein shall be deemed to make Attorney an employee 

of the City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Attorney have set 

their names. 

CITY OF HARTFORD 

 

BY 

________________________________ 

     Its Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

Finance Officer 

ATTORNEY: 

 

__________________________________ 

Thomas H. Frieberg 



 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) 

           : SS 

COUNTY  OF  MINNEHAHA ) 

 

On this the ______ day of _____________, 2021, before me, 

the undersigned officer, personally appeared Jeremy Menning and 

Karen Wilbur, who acknowledged themselves to be the Mayor and 

Finance Officer, respectively, of Hartford South Dakota, a 

Municipality, and that they as such Mayor and Finance Officer, 

known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the persons described 

in the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed 

the same in the capacity therein stated and for the purposes 

therein contained. 

 

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official 

seal. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Notary Public, South Dakota 

My commission expires: _________ 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) 

                      : SS 

COUNTY   OF    UNION  ) 

 

 

On this the _____ day of ______________, 2021, before me,  

the undersigned officer, personally appeared Thomas H. Frieberg, 

known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name 

is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that he 

executed the same for the purposes therein contained. 

 

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official 

seal. 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Notary Public, South Dakota 

My commission expires: ___________ 

 


	01052021 1.pdf
	1 - 01052021 cc agenda.pdf
	2 - 12-15-20 Minutes.pdf
	3 - 12-21-20 special Minutes.pdf
	4 - 2021 Garbage License Renewals.pdf
	5a - Public Notice - cc meeting 1.5.21.pdf
	5b - 698. off street parking draft 3.pdf
	5c - maps of driveways.pdf
	6 - 699.Pools as structures draft.pdf

	01052021 2.pdf�
	7 - December 30 DAY WRAP-UP.pdf
	8 - 2021_01_05 - Engineer's Report.pdf
	9 - Maint January 5 2021.pdf
	10 - Finance Officer Report.1-5-21.pdf
	11 - City.Adm.01.05.2021.pdf
	12 - Proposed PT Office Assistant.pdf
	13 - Agreement with City Attorney.2021.pdf


